

Universal Contract Manager (UCM)/

**UNF Full-Access User Manual** 

# **Table of Contents**

Logging in to iContracts	2
Home Screen Interface (Your Dashboard)	3
Updating Your User Profile Page	4
Searching for a Contract or Contracts: Global Search	5
Notifications on the Home Screen	6
Entering Contracts	7
Direct Entry	7
Field Groups	9
Reviewers	12
Enterprise Ribbon	15
Contracts Tab	15
Working with the Grid	16
Views or Reports	19
Modifying a View	23
The Contract Container	24
Contract Container: Summary Tab	26
Contract Container: Attachments	29
Contract Container: Activities	36
Contract Container: Milestones	
Contract Container: Notes	42
Contract Container: History	45
Contract Container: Emails	46
Contract Container: Related Contracts	47
Appendix A: List of Standard Default Contract Fields	48
Appendix B: UNF Naming Convention	50

# Logging in to iContracts

	ts.	Login/Signup
Don't have an Account? Sign Up! Change the Company Name?	Company Name: University of North Florida Username: Password: Forgot password? Login	

Use the following links to access iContracts:

### My Wings Banner Self Service: Staff page>My Applications>iContracts

OR

### https://ucm.iContracts.com

Users are set up by the system administrator with the following parameters:

Company Name:University of North FloridaUsername:N#Password:MyWings password

## Home Screen Interface (Your Dashboard)

9 10	11	(12)	(13)	14	(15)	Include Archived
me Contracts	Performance	Activities	Milestones	Notes	2 Contracts To Review	
Home						(18)
	(19)			20		
				1		
	Direct Entry		1	emplate		
21 My Favo	rite Views 2	2 OARd View			R	
Activity     Contra	Upcoming or Ov cts: In process (24	erdue Activitie 4)	24	23		
Contra     Notes:	cts: Incomplete St Notes Created with	arkChecklist thin last 5 day	(26)	*		

- 1. Login information area
- 2. Help text
- 3. Change your user profile
- 4. Log out from the system
- 5. Text input area for Global Search
- 6. Global Search button to execute search
- 7. Click to search archived (closed) contracts
- 8. Enterprise Ribbon (Bar)
- 9. Home tab (in this case you are viewing the Home screen)
- 10. Contracts tab
- 11. Performance tab

12. Activities tab

- 13. Milestones tab
- 14. Notes tab
- 15. Contracts to Review Notification tab\*
- 16. Add Contract icon
- 17. View Activities icon
- 18. Help icon
- 19. Create new Contract via Direct Entry icon
- 20. Create new contract via Template icon
- 21. My Favorite Views icon
- 22. Add View to My Favorite Views icon
- 23. Delete View from My Favorite Views icon

\*only visible when you have a contract to review

# **Updating Your User Profile Page**

Updating your profile is easily done by clicking the My Profile button at the top right of the screen. Simply enter the new information and click the Save button; i.e. title, UNF phone, UNF address. Only a system administrator can change your user type and email address. You will also find the iContracts company manual and help videos on this screen.

On the User Profile pane do <u>not</u> check or activate Shared Views, AutoCreate Activity settings, AutoCreate Milestone settings, nor change your password.

<u>`</u>			Welcome: UNFinstructor (F-R) Company: University of North Florida		🛿 Help 🌲 My Profile 🗘	8 Logout
):Cont	ro ata					Global
XICONT		5		Search By: Contr	ract Name 💌 Include Archived 🔲	seatth
Home Contract	s Activities	Milestones			+	-
		1				
My Drofile						
iviy Prome						
Account Informat	ion					
Username:	UNFInstructor					
User Type:	Full-Access User	The dia court	Download Full-Access M	anual [04/2013]		
Default Time Zone.	(GMT-05:00) Easten	n Time (US & Canad)				
	Save Cance	ł	Video Links			
Personal Informa	tion					
First Name:	Contracts					
Last Name:	Instructor					
Title: Email:	alan Burd ada					
+ Add	aleegunt.edu					
+ Add						
Mobile: + Add	(international code+	mobilenumber)				
Fax: Address						
+ Add Street Address:						
City:						
State/Province:						
Postal Code/Zip:						
Country:			•			
	Save Cano	el				
Shared Views						
Ignore Shared Views	Hold Ctri key to sele	ct muitiple items				
	Save Cano	el				
AutoCreate Activi	ty settings					
AutoCreate Activities:						
	Save Can	el				
AutoCreate Miles	tone settings					
AutoCreate Milestone:		_				
5	Save Cancel					
Change Password	d					
Password:						
Confirm Password:						
	Save Cano	el				
		-				

## **Searching for a Contract or Contracts: Global Search**

Located in the top right corner of the screen is the Global Search field for use in finding a contract or a set of contracts. There are four criteria to choose from to speed up your search:

#### Search by Contract Name (probably the most common way to search for a contract)\*



Search by Contract ID (the unique identifier assigned by UCM)

144881			Global Search
Search By:	Contract Name 💌	]	
	Contract Name		
	Contract ID		
	Summary Data Attachment Text All	÷	2.

Search Summary Data (all data included in the Summary and General Info Field Groups)

			Global Search
Search By:	Contract Name 💌		
	Contract Name		
	Contract ID		
	Attachment Text	+	М

Search in Attachment Text (ignores Fields, Contract Names, and Contract IDs)

indemnificati	indemnification							
Search By:	Contract Name 💌							
	Contract Name Contract ID							
	Summary Data Attachment Text All	+	2.					

\* Include Archived should only be checked for contracts that have expired <u>and</u> have been moved to the Archived contract stage.

Note: Searching using the "ALL" feature is NOT RECOMMENDED. This selection slows the system.

## **Notifications on the Home Screen**

Any contract reviews assigned to a user that have not been completed will appear in the Enterprise Ribbon. Clicking on that alert will enable a pop-up window with a listing of the Contract Container names that will link to the Summary tab of those contracts. In addition, an e-mail is always sent when a user is assigned to a review. Contract reviews are covered in detail later in this documentation.



Activity notifications appear on the screen when the user logs in. To make it appear "on-demand" click on the blue box in the Enterprise Ribbon. Below is the Activity Reminder box that appears when an activity:

 has been assigned to you Activity Reminder × • is due or overdue Total Activity(s): 3 lease payments has not been marked as completed Start time: 10/1/2012 8:00:00 AM Subject Due in 10/1/2012 8:00:00 AM lease payments 12/2/2011 8:00:00 AM Financial Review Complete Financial Review 7/11/2012 8:00:00 AM Dismiss All Open Item Dismiss

Checking the Dismiss box will permanently remove the highlighted activity from the list, yet not mark the activity as completed. Email reminders will continue if marked to do so. Checking the Dismiss All box will permanently remove all of the activities.

## **Entering Contracts**

Home Contracts     Activities     Milestones     Home     Image: Contracts     Image: Contracts	Contracts	Welcome: UNFInstructor (F-R) Company: University of North Florida	Help A My Profile      Glot Search By: Contract Name Include Archived
Home     Image: Contracts: Training Contracts (19)	Home Contracts Activities Milestones		÷ =
Direct Entry My Favorite Views OAdd View • Contracts: Training Contracts (19)	Home		
My Favorite Views OAdd View  Contracts: Training Contracts (19)	Direct Entry	Template	
	My Favorite Views OAdd View Contracts: Training Contracts (19)	×	

There are two ways to create or enter a new contract:

- 1. Direct Entry
- 2. Defined Template (UNF does not currently use this option)

## **Direct Entry**



To create a contract, simply click on the Direct Entry button and enter a Title, Contract Type, Stage, Description and Folder. Click Continue to create a new Contract Container. After the Contract Container has been created, additional documents (attachments) can be added to your Contract Container as well as adding Contract Fields and Field Groups.

2 i C			IS NOT	Company: Univer	sity of North Flor	ida Searc	> W Help ch By: Contract N Includ	ame 💽 e Archived 🔲	Glob Sear
Home	Contracts	Activities	Milestones					+	2
ome									ę
Up	bload New C	ontract							
	Contrac	ct Name:						1	ŧ
	Contra	ct Type:	Select						•
	Assign W	orkflow							
	Initial Workflow	w Stage: Buy	ver Review		•				
	Contract Des	cription:			*				
		Owner: iCo	ntracts Instructor		•				
	Folde	er Name:	Select		•			•	•
	Docume	ent Title:							
	Document Ca	ategory:	Select Category		•				
	Docume	nt State: Dra	ft		•				
		File:				Browse			
	Primary Doci	ument?: 📃							
	Document Des	cription:			* *				
	Related C	Fa contract:S	se  elect ContractType Select Contract Type		•				
			C	Continue	Cancel				

Note: Fields notated by a red asterisk are required to be completed by the system.

Contract Name: When creating or entering the name of a new contract, refer to the Appendix B of this manual and follow the procedures under "UNF Naming Convention".

The naming conventions of <u>Contract Types</u> and <u>Workflows</u> start with divisional specific prefixes.

For example: Administration and Finance is "AF". Individual users only see Contract Types and Workflows that are associated to their division.

# **Field Groups**

Field Groups are a way to group data fields for organized entry, quick setup and maintains a cleaner, more visible look (illustration on following page).

The University of North Florida's Purchasing Department requests that specific Field Groups be filled out as vital information pertaining to any contract entered into the system. These fields are necessary to complete the Summary tab of the Contract Container.

The requested fields are as follows with those noted with an \* being required fields to complete:

- 1. Contract Category\*
- 2. Fiscal Year\*
- 3. Justification\*
- 4. Total 1st Year Cost\*
- 5. Effective Start Date
- 6. Effective End Date
- 7. Index\*
- 8. Fund\*
- 9. ORG\*
- 10. Vendor Name\*
- 11. Vendor N#
- 12. Vendor Application Received
- 13. Vendor W9 Received

When uploading a new contract, after entering the Summary Data fields, iContracts now continues on to the General Info Field Group & Insurance Requirements Field Group for data entry.

Once these field groups are completed and saved, a contact ID number is generated and an automatic e-mail notification is sent to the contract owner.

		Company: University of North Florida	🕹 Help 📥	My Profile 🗳 🥴
Contrac			Search By: Contract Name Include Ar	Gk Se rchived
Home Contracts Activities	Milestones			+ =
Example for Trai	ining Ma	nual	Curr	ent Stage/Change Sta
(189173)	ing ina		\delta 院 Owner Review	
Summary Attachment(s) Show Contract Attributer Contract Name: Example Contract Origin: User	Activities M	lilestones Notes History Email Expand All 🗹	Related Contracts	Add Fields 🍯
Contract ID: 189173				
Description: An exam	pole for UCM-UNF i	Contracts manual		
Owner: iContracts	Instructor	Notify on Stage Undeter		
Deview Stature - Na Davia	Set for this C	Notify on Stage Opdate:		
Contract Type: TRAININ	G - LINE Demo Cor	ntract		
Folder Name: Universit	v of North Florida\L	JNF Training Folder		
Created On: 12/10/201	3 4:26:32 PM	Updated On: 12/10/2013 4:26:	32 PM	
Created Buy Contracto	Instructor	Undeted Pur Contracto Instru		
Created By: IContracts	Instructor	Updated By: IContracts Instruct	ctor	
General Info (Field Group)				
Contract Cotogony				
Eiscal Voar	[Select From Li	istj 🗸		8
	Select From Li	istj 💌		
Alternate Contact:				Q
Justification:				~ 🐼
				-
Quote Expiration Date:				Q
Total 1st Year Costs:				<sup>o</sup>
Recurring Annual Costs:				0
Change Order or Amendment Amount:				0
				R
Total Contract Value:				
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal:				
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options:				0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options:				0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date:				2 21 21 21
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index:				ର ର ର ର
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund:				0 0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG:				9 9 9 9 9
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number:				9 9 9 9 9 9
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name:				2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor N#:				2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Received:				2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Application Received:				2 2 2 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received:				2 2 2 3 2 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received:				0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received:				0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor N#: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received:				0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor V9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fie	l control cont			0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor V9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fie UNF Insurance Required:	l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l			
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fie UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Expiration:	l composition of the second se			
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fie UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Expiration: Vendor Insurance Required:	☐			2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor W9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fig UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Required: Vendor Insurance Required: Vendor Insurance Required: Vendor Insurance Expiration: Vendor Insurance Expiration:	I Group)			
Total Contract Value: Auto Renewal: Renewal Options: Effective Start Date: Effective End Date: Index: Fund: ORG: PO Number: Vendor Name: Vendor Name: Vendor Application Received: Vendor M9 Received: Save Cancel Insurance Requirements (Fie UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Required: UNF Insurance Required: Vendor Insurance Required: Vendor Insurance Expiration: Vendor Insurance Expiration:	>\d Group)			2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

## Adding a Field

Added fields will appear as their own ribbon at the top of the list of added fields, with the most recently added on top. Use the Add Fields drop-down box to select the new field. Field ribbons can be expanded or condensed to show or hide the information they contain. Click on the Edit icon ( $\checkmark$ ) to edit any field or the Delete icon ( $\thickapprox$ ) to delete any field.

Date fields added separately will provide the option to create Activities and Milestones.

\ \				Welcom Compar	e: UNFInstructor ny: University of N	(F-R) orth Florida	💎 🖗 Hel	p ቆ My Profile 🕻	togo
•) :	Cont		te						Global Search
$\mathbf{X}$	BETTER CONTRAC	TING SOLUT					Search By: Contrac	t Name 💌	
							Inclu	de Archived 🔲	
Hon	ne Contracts	Activities	Milestones	5				+	2
_								0	
E	xample fo	or Train	ing Man	ual				Current Stage/Chan	ge stage
(1	189173)						Owner Revie	vv fo	or 6 days
Sum	nmary Attac	hment(s)	Activities	Milestones	Notes Histor	y Email	Related Contract	ts	
	Show Contra	ct Attributes		Expand All 🛛 📝				<b>     </b>	
		Collaps	e All Selec	t Category/	All Fields 💌	Add Fields	Choose field to a	add	
	Contract Nam	e: Example f	for Training Manu	Jal					
	Contract Orig	in: User							
	Contract	ID: 189173							
	Related Contra	ct:							
	Descriptio	on: An examp	ple for UCM-UNF	iContracts manual.					
	Owner	: iContracts I	nstructor	Noti	fy on Stage Updat	e: 🔲			
	Review Statu	is: No Review	wers Set for this	Contract Container					
	Contract Typ	e: TRAINING	- UNF Demo Co	ntract					
	Folder Nam	ie: University	y of North Florida	UNF Training Folde	r				
	Created On	: 12/10/2013	3 4:26:32 PM	Up	dated On: 12/16	/2013 12:39:57 P	м		
	Created By	: iContracts	Instructor	Up	dated By: iContr	acts Instructor			
R.J	Effective Start Da	ate (Date)							Ø
	08/05/2013			Undate Activity	+ Milestone	Auto Undate	Milestone		
			<b>,</b> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		_				
	Save Cance	I							
<b>F</b>	Effective End Dat	e (Date)							3
144									
	01/01/2017	<b>+</b> A	ctivity Auto	Update Activity	🛨 Milestone	Auto Update	Milestone		
	Save Cance	1							
R.	General Info (I	Field Group)						(?)@	<b>9</b>
	Contract Catego	ry:	New						0
	Fiscal Year:		FY 14						S
	Alternate Contac	:t:							$\overline{\diamond}$
	Justification:		Training Exam	ple of all appropriate	info entered for a	contract.			S
	Quote Expiration	Date:							Ø

## **Reviewers**

The Contracts to Review tab allows collaboration among multiple users not assigned in the workflow. iContracts will alert users if they have a contract or document to review by the notification on the Enterprise Ribbon to the far right when in the Home Screen. The user can see the name of the Contract Container(s) when they click on the notification and then proceed to the review process from there, as seen on the following page. Reviewers are defined when a Contract Container is created and can also be defined in the contracts Summary tab by clicking on the Review Status link.



Summary	Attachm	ent(s)	Activities	Milestones	Notes	Email	Rela
Show Co	ontract At	tributes	5	Expand All	3		
Contra	ct Name:	Equipn	nent <mark>Mainten</mark> a	ince Agreement			
Contra	ct Origin:	User					
Cor	ntract ID:	96991					
Related	Contract:						
Des	scription:						
	Owner: (	Carl Leir	bach		Notify	on Stage	e 🗐
Revie	w Status:	1 left	to review, c	lick here to se	e Scoreb	oard	)
Contra	act Type:	Facilitie	ec				

### **Reviewers Setup**

Reviewers can be set up in the Contract Container within the Summary tab by clicking on the Review Status link. Select a user by clicking on the name, or multiple users by holding down the CTRL key and clicking on multiple names. Email notifications can also be designated here.

Owner: iC	ontracts Instructor		Notify on Stage Update:	
Review Status:	No Reviewers Set	for this Contract Cor	ntainer	
Contract Type:	TRAINING - UNF De	emo Contract		
		SET CONTRACT R	EVIEW	
	Select Reviewers:	Hold Ctrl key to select mull Select Users A Alison Cruess E Ana Guzman Angela Lee Ann Hamlin	iple items	
	Notify On Status Change:	Select User	•	
	Notify On Review Completion:	Select User SAVE CANCEL		
	L			

Reviewers can "score" the document when either clicking on the contract name in the pop-up window generated by the Contract Review notification alert on the Enterprise ribbon or clicking on the Review Status link as described on the previous page.

Choose the button and click Save to enter your choice and then enter any notes on the subsequent screen.

The system records the selection and sends an email, if defined, and will do so from each reviewer.

ames	Reviewers Total of 5 revie	wers	), Fin view (Barge 1) @	- Der Erdern
amea	Reviewers Total of 5 revie	wcrs	0	
amea	Total of 5 revie	wers		
amea				
	5	0	0	
	Not Reviewed	<ul> <li>Approvati</li> </ul>	Residen	
ne	Not Revewed	Approved	<ul> <li>Rejected</li> </ul>	u - Aratt Filminds 😢
1	Not Revewad	Approved	<ul> <li>Have start</li> </ul>	
5	Not Revewed	Approved	<ul> <li>Reacted</li> </ul>	
	Not Reviewed	<ul> <li>Approved</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Recent</li> </ul>	
ch	Not Reviewed	C Approved	Rejected	
(	:h	Not Reviewed	Not Reviewed     Approved     Approved     SAVE CANCEL EXIT	Not Reviewed     Not Reviewed     Approved     Rejected     SAVE CANCEL     EXIT



## **Enterprise Ribbon**

1	•) : (	Cont	rad	łe	Welcon Compa	ne: UNFInstructor (I ny: University of No	F-R) orth Florida		😧 Help 🏝 My Profile	Global Search
-	XI	TER CONTRAC	TING SOLUT	ON5				Search By:	Contract Name 💌 Include Archived 🖾	
	Home	Contracts	Activities	Milestones	Notes	Company Admin	2 Contracts	To Review	w +	-

Navigating and using iContracts is straightforward. Across the top of each page is the Enterprise ribbon. By clicking on any tab on the Enterprise ribbon, a user activates that specific set of capabilities.

For example, by clicking on the Contracts tab, the user navigates to a listing of all active contracts. Each area in iContracts will list all of the items associated with that tab across <u>ALL</u> contracts based upon that user's permissions.

Contrac	ts		Welcome: UNFinati Company: Universi	ructor (F-R) ity of North Florida		Samuth By: (	Contract frame  Contract frame	O Logia Glabal Scorak	*The column headir
Hone Contracts Activities	Milestones	Notes 2 Contracts To Review					2+3=		can be arranged and
Contracts Views (4)	Contracts						(5) Megiort	- 63	
XIERA AL CONTRETA · Approvel Check (25) *	General Per Pe	nge Minterde (*			1.01				sorted as the individ sees fit - some of th
View All Contracts · Approver Check (25) X · Compliance Check (25) X · Contracts in Proces(25) X	Generals Per Pa	ege Winsteide (+)	3329580V -	8 genationara	Acta	Leachgion	Prevolucianent	Contra	sorted as the individ sees fit - some of th
Versi AL CONTRATA - Approval Check (20) X - Compliance Check((10) C) X - Contracts in France(20) X - Contracts in France(20) X - Contract (10) X - Contract (10	Grane do Per Po	age 10 month + Cotractione Dobo Physician Laterator	Vagetace .	Sciences -	Auto Reconcer	Lenzation Laterative Facility Ryste	PrevoyCocument	Conta	sorted as the indivio sees fit - some of th columns shown ma
View AL COORDER * Approve Check (2) X * Complement Proceeding Construction Frace(2) X * Examines within Alvie) * Examines within Alvie * Examines within Alvi	Grane da Per Pe	ege Winsords - ContractionSe Discontraction Laboratory Discontraction Laboratory Descention Laboratory	Vapriane ». Naproveć eveline sijnati. Approveć-avatne sijnati.	Rystan Rystan Rystan	Adh Arriton	Description Lakeniers/Facility Rights here projecter Contract Sun 2012	MonryCocurrent contract restrictedux contract restricted v2.dox	Contra	sorted as the individ sees fit - some of th columns shown may
VIEWAL DOCESING - Separation Check (20) - Comparison Processing - Processing Comparison - Comparison Processing - Processing Comparison - Comparison Processing - Co	Grounds Per Po Ingenier Date Dertsgene Dertsgene Dertsgene Dertsgene	ege Minsonda - Contractivade Doco Privaciani Lateratore Doco Marcino Setras IAA 2052.2013 Cont Justeman Laseras	Stapelane « Approved evening signal Approved evening signal Approved evening signal	Rystens Prystens Prystens r	Adt Antena	Description Lake-Veror Paulity Rights freev projection Contract SUA 2012	ProgryCocurrent contrast_restrictubac contrast_restrictubac	Contra 5 year	sorted as the indivions sees fit - some of th columns shown man not show on your
Varian ALL LOCKING + ABARDANIC MARK (20) K Comparison Concentration Comparison Concentration Comparison Concentration Comparison (Concentration) Comparison (Concen	Copension Date     Copension Date     Copension Date     Copension     Copension	Knowle      Contraction     Contraction     Contraction     Solid Provident Laterative	Staphlane « Approved evening signal, Approved-evening signal, Approved-evening signal, Approved-evening signal,	Bichtracti contante Prysicians Prysicians P P Doppy Suppy	Adv Anneas	Lescapton Lakowor Pality Ryths teer physical Contract SLA 2012 Hespital and OR supples	ProgryCocurrent contrast_reatment.doc secture1_reatment.ol.doc secture1_reatment.ol.doc	Canta S year	sorted as the individ sees fit - some of th columns shown may not show on your
VIEWALL CONTRACT + Approving Charles (22) * Complement December 30 * Complement December 30 * Comment and the Proceeding W - Comment and the Proceeding W - Incomplete StateContract W * Proving Contract StateContract StateContract W * Proving Contract StateContract Sta	Copension Date     Copension Date     Copension Date     Copension     Copension	Winscript     Contraction     Contraction     Boldo Provision Laboratory     Proc. Marcillan     Default MA 2015/23013     Other Indexes     Scription Laboratory     Scription Calcol Assessment 2012     Decis Agrossment 2012     Decis Agrossment 2012	Зтарліали ». Аральна внивіть сірна. Аральна внивіть сірна. Аральна внивіть сірна. Аральна внивіть сірна. Аральна внивіть сірна.	Registerit yanam Prysicans In yscans In 9 Soapy Food Services		Description Later-arror Politity Rystia new physical Contract SLA 2012 Respirat and Oft supples	Pressylacurest contrast_reatment.acc contrast_reatment.ac. contrast_reatment.acd Proc.Nat.Concertast Proc.Nat.Concertast Concertast.acc	Contra S year	sorted as the indivions sees fit - some of th columns shown mawn not show on your screen.
Vancat Loosenia +Agenovicties (22) X Scentractain Frace/20 X +Cantractain Frace/20 X +Cantractain Frace/20 X +Cantractain Static (22) X +Discontractain Static (22) X +Discontracta	Constant Part Part     Constant Part     ConstantPart     Constant Part     Constant Part     Constant Part     Con	Wresends      Contractione     Cont	Stapstane « Approved avesting signal. Approved avesting signal. Approved avesting signal. Approved avesting signal. Approved avesting signal.	Bulgrandit gentame Prysicies IF IF Int Granices Lease retur		Linectration Laterative Pacility Raphs here physician Contract SLA 2012 Hospital and Oft supples Physician's offices	Prosystectment contrast_readment.acc contrast_readment.acc contrast_readment.acc contrast_band.acc contrast_band.acc contrast_band.acc	Contas S year	sorted as the indivions sees fit - some of th columns shown mann not show on your screen.
Vancal Loozana *Agronul Check (22) X Scorplance Checkellon (0) X *Contractal Infraces(20) X *Contractal Infraces(20) X *Contraction (20) X *Contraction (20) X *Interpreted (20) X *Interprete	Grocerda Par Pa     Lagamon Bate     Din 52014     Di	Contractivities     Contractivities     Contractivities     Dobo Physicslein Labershow     Son March 200     Son Ma	задишани « Арагина англаба царал арарина-ангалар царал Арарина-ангалар царал Арарина-ангалар царал Арарина-ангалар царал Арарина-ангалар царал Арарина-ангалар царал	Bolgranditypetame Prysicans r c 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Adt Arthur	Lencration Laterative Paulity Rights new physical Contract SLA 2012 Hespital and Oft supples Physician's articles	ProvyCocurrent contrast_readment.doc contrast_readment.doc contrast_readment.doc contrast_tend.doc contrast_tend.doc contrast_intend.of contrast_intend.of contrast_intend.of	Conta S year	sorted as the indivions sees fit - some of th columns shown mann not show on your screen.
Varian All Loopenia + Agenovic Charles (20) K Compliance Concentration Comparison Concentration Commission in Proceeding Commission writen 1996 (20) - Incomplete StateCharles (20) - Incomplete StateCharles (20) - Photosenia Andrometica - Photo	Groberds Per P     Contraction Bale     Definition     Definit     Definition     Definition     Definitio	Knowle      Contraction     Contraction     Contraction     Solid Final Action     Solid Final     Soli	Знарявали « Арргоно ечейла кірля. Арргоно ечейла кірля.	Prostans Prostans III Process III Process III Process Iasse return I facilies Lesse return	Adda Andra C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Lekceptos Lakowor Pacity Notas here physican Connect BLA 2012 Hospital and Oft supples Physician's antipes Disrege warehouse	Provoticeurent contract realized values contract realized values contract averafiant contract averafiant contract description contract field des contract field des contract field des contract field des contract field des contract field des	Contra S year 3 year	sorted as the indivions sees fit - some of th columns shown mann not show on your screen.

- 1. Enterprise Ribbon
- 2. Add Contract button
- 3. Activities notifications
- 4. Contracts Views area
- 5. Report button
- 6. Records Per Page selector

- 7. Active Contracts listing
- 8. Field Header row
- 9. Contract grid
- 10. Page navigator
- 11. Refresh icon
- 12. Display counter

The Contracts tab provides users with a simple way to access all or any filtered set of contracts, referred to as Views. In the Contracts Views panel to the left, you can add or modify an unlimited number of saved searches that contain criteria such as multilevel sorting, page layouts and the ability to filter on any combination of contract data. Users can rearrange and sort the data to their liking. By clicking on the Report button in the upper right-hand corner of the page, a user may also download the complete file in CSV (comma-delimited) readable format of the contracts listed in their Contract Views pane. Remember that all grids in the system behave similarly, so the explanation of how to arrange the grid that follows applies to all areas inside of iContracts where a grid appears.

By clicking on any contract title, the user will move from the Contract Views to a Summary tab inside the selected Contract Container (to be covered later in this manual).

Expiration Data	ContractName	StageName -	ContractTypeName	Auto Renewal	Description	PrimaryDocument	Contra
06/15/2014	Bobb Physician - Lakeview	Approved-asvalting signal	Physicians	12	Lateview Facility Rights		
03/21/2015	Ricco, Mari MD	Approved-awating signal	Physicians	10	New physician Contract	contract_redimed.doc	
04/25/2013	Citrix SLA 2012-2013	Approved-awatero signat	IF .	101	SLA 2012	contract redlined-v2.doc	5 year
2/31/2014	EMR Software License	Approved-awating signal	г	17		contract stoned.cdf	
12/31/2012	Kimberity-Clark Supplies 2012	Approved-awateg signal	Suppy	12	Hospital and OR supplies	Final Fully-Executed Na-	
00/2-1/2015	Sysce Agreement 2013	Approved-assating signal	Food Services			sontrast final-das	
01/17/2015	1720 II. Termino Blvd., Long Beach	Approved-awaling signal	Lease - renior	12	Physician's offices	contract signed.pdf	
07/23/2015	MedEquis Maintenense sumpany	Approved awalting signal	Fauilles	<b>E</b>		santrest finel v3-day	
11/26/2015	1100 Columbine Drive, Holton	Assign Attemny	Lease - rentor	1	Storage warehouse	Contract Request Form	3 year
	Barrie, Christian, MD	Assign Allemay	Physicians	12	Master agreement with Dr. Barrie	contract draft.dog	
6		<b>H</b>	200				

## Working with the Grid

### Arranging the grid

The drop-down selector for displaying the number of records per page.

Click and drag between column heading to resize the column width.

#### Contracts

Records Per Page		10 records	2m
	1	10 records	4
Expiration Date	Co	20 records	
12/31/2012	Kir	50 records	plie
12/31/2014	EN	100 records	nse

ContractName	+  stag
Kimberly-Clark Suppli	Арр
FIID C-6	

Click and drag in the middle of any heading to change the order of displayed columns.

Records Per P	age 10	records	~			
Expiration Date	Contra	ctName		StageName 🔺	Auto Renewal	Da
12/31/2012	<u>≜Ki</u> ⊘	Auto	oplies 2012	Approved-awaiting signat		27
12/31/2014	EN	Renewal	nse	Approved_awaiting signat		22
04/25/2013	Citrix	SI & 2012.7	013	Approved_awaiting signat	100	221

Hover your mouse over any column heading and a drop-down arrow appears that allows sorting by ascending or descending order.

ContractName	J	StageName 🔺	
Kimberly-Clark Supplies 2012	¥.	Sort Ascending	at
EMR Software License	Z↓	Sort Descending	at
Citrix SLA 2012-2013		Columns	at
Bobb Physician - Lakeview		-pprovoo-arraining an	nat

You can also choose which columns or fields you would like to display, in which a new pop-up window will appear for you to choose from all available fields. Listed on the left side are the default contract attributes to appear as the first category, and all of your custom-configured fields appear below sorted alphabetically by Field category. On the right side are the fields that appear as column headings on the grid, in which top-tobottom appear as left-to-right in the grid. Clicking and dragging vertically will change the order of appearance in the grid.

Clicking on any column heading will sort the grid based on that column in ascending order and ...

Contract - Originary				V	sible Columns (drag ar	nd drop to re-order)
Contract Attribute ContractOrgin ContractOrgin ContextDon DovsinCurrStage ExiCentextBerB Folderfams RestedTocontract RestedTocont RestedTocon	rgjetion dusChange D			e Selected <	Contract Dates : Capital *Centract AttributosnD *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D *Centract Attributes:D	en Date ontractBarne onkex(TypeName werdplan titungTopurnot titungTo pdatedOn ontractD Visible Columns (drag, and drop to re-order) Contract Dates::Expration Date Contract Attributes:ContractName Contract Attributes:StarParton Date Contract Attributes:StarParton Date
			Savo	Cancel		Contract Attributes:ContractTypeRome Auto Reservat Contract Attributes:Description Contract Attributes:Description
	10282016	Bengamint Prenae	Asbign Adamay	Physic	ons	Contract Attributes://ontracl.long/bocument     Contract Attributes://ontracl.long/bocument     Contract Attributes://ontracl.long/bocument     Contract Attributes://ontract.long/bocument     Contract Attributes://ontract.long/bocument

...clicking a second time will sort in descending order. The grid can be sorted by any visible column using this method. The column used for sorting is indicated by a darkened shade and a small triangular arrow pointing upward showing ascending sorting or downward for descending sorting.

At the bottom left of the grid is a page number indicator and navigation area. To change pages you can either use the left- or right arrows, or type in the page you would like to move to.

Contractil -	Contractiliame	Cre
70000	HR auditor contract	10/
79040	Kimberly-Clark Supplies 2012	119
1 79174	Waste Collection 2012	114
79125	HAL business software license	11
1 11121	Shindlinhouse Elevator Sve Contract	11/
79184	EMR Software License	114
7.9604	Kica, Daniel, MD	124
79607	Rahl Glen MD	124
70608	ModSurg Supply Co	12
79975	Bobb Rowlph Physician 2012	91/
24		

(	
N N Paoc	014 🕅
	Next Page

To refresh the listing of contracts in the grid (perhaps another user has updated data contained in any of the visible columns since it was last viewed) click on the circular arrows on the right.

	14	Page	of 4	• •	Refresh
--	----	------	------	-----	---------

Finally, on the far bottom right, there will be a listing of how many total contracts match the entered criteria.



## **Views or Reports**



- 1. Link to display all contracts for which you have permissions
- 2. Name of view
- Number of contracts that currently meet the view criteria
- 4. Delete view
- A view in red is a view in which a field used in the criteria has been deleted (hopefully you have none of these)
- 6. A green rectangle means that the view is defined as the default when entering the page
- 7. A circled red "S" indicates that the view is shared to you from another system user
- 8. Hover over a specific view to display the full name of the view
- 9. Link to Add New View

Views are customizable real-time queries that can be of one-time use or named and saved to be used repeatedly to narrow and simplify the list from any of the areas inside of iContracts. To create a report from any view, click on the Report button at the top right of the grid.

#### To Create a New View

- 1. Choose the field to query and the associated criteria
- 2. Decide which columns to view in the layout and arrange them (see steps next page)
- 3. Choose the contract field that the created view will be sorted by
- 4. Choose the sort order
- 5. Click the Run button for <u>one time</u> use of the created view
- 6. For <u>repeated</u> use of a newly created view, click on 'Save this View'. You will be asked to name your view. Then click the Run button

Create/Modify Contracts	View					
Get Contracts that match the follo	owing criteria:					
Add Criteria		Include Archived				
Default Fields And Sequence	e					
ContractName	CrestedOn Description	Owner				Þ
Default Sort Order						
Contracts Field	Select Fields	· 3		OAscending Order (A Descending Order (2	-Z) Z-A)	Add
	Contracts Field		Sort Order		Delete	
						Save this View Run Cancel

### **Determining Which Columns Appear in the Grid**

You can define and change the default columns that will appear for each view. To do so, click on any column heading and choose Columns from the drop-down list underneath the sort order icons. A window will appear for you to check which fields to appear in the headings.

Expiration Data				1
Add Criteria	1	Include Archives		-
Data in Fields and Seal				
Contractilane	- Description	CreatedOn	FolderName	Workflow
	9↓ Sett Ascendin Z↓ Sett Descendin	9 ng		
	Columns	16		
10	6.			
	SICTS		Visible Columns	{drag and drop to re.order}

### Arranging the Grid Columns

Since every grid in the system behaves similarly, please refer to section 'Working with the Grid' on page 16.

Dofault Field	s And Seq	uence			
Opration Date	CoreractD	Costactione	tamati prose	Description	
Default Fields	And Sect	ence			
Expiration Date	Copyrate	ContractName extractCoperform	ContracTyperiane	Description	

The completed screen for creating a view is shown below with two sets of criteria to track, the desired columns and their order, sort order based on two fields, and the option for saving the view for repeated use.

Get Contra	acts that match the foll	owing criteria						
	Expiration Date		on or bofara	-		Ē	1	
and <b>T</b>	ContractTypeName	7	contains	7 1	physician		remove	
🔾 Add Cr	itoria	E	Include Archives					
Default F	Fleids And Sequend	e						
ContractNo	amo	Expiration Date	Description		CroatedOn		FolderName	TH.
1			17					*
+ Sort Ord	er		n -					t
+ Sort Ord	er Folds ContractNar	10	ţī .			Ascendin Descendin	rg Order (A-Z) ing Order (Z-A)	+ Add
+ Sort Ord	er Fields ContractNar Contract	ne Field	17	• So	nt Order	Ascendin     Descendi	g Order (A-Z) ing Order (Z-A) Delete	+ Ada
1 Sort Ord	er Folds ContractNar Contract txeiratio	te Field h Date	17	So	nt Order scending	Ascendin     ©Descendi	ig Order (A-Z) ing Order (Z-A) Delate	, Add
× Sort Ord	er Folds ContractNar Contract Exorratio Contract	te Field Name	#	So A	n Order scending	●Ascendin ©Descendi	ng Order (A-Z) ng Order (Z-A) Delate X X	ł

## **Modifying a View**

In order to edit any saved view, first run the view, and then click on the Edit View icon above the column headings area. If you are looking to simply filter the results, choose Filter located above the Report button.

Lic	Conti	racts				C	Search Archive 🕅	Glob Sear
Home	Contracts	Performance	Activities	Milestone	a Notes		E	+
Contra View All	ict Views	Filter View	/5				(F)	Filter
Approv	vel (7) (9)	Physician	Contracts				Edit View	Report
Approv     Physic	iana (7)	Records	Per Page 10	records 💌				
- Physic	ian ©X	ContractNa	τe		StogeName	Expiration Date	ContractTypeNome	Description
Phyaic	inna (E) 🗙	Bobib Phys	ician Battleo	rook	Draft	4/26/2013	Physicians	Battleoreek

The resulting screen will be the query as it is currently saved. Modify any of the criteria. Prior to leaving the Edit View screen:

- Save and Run with the same name will update the view
- Save and Run with a different name will create an additional new view
- Run will simply **run** the view without saving it

Contract Fields	Select Fields	<ul> <li>OAscending</li> <li>Descending</li> </ul>	g Order (A-Z) ig Order (Z-A)	Add
	Contract Field	Sort Order	Delete	
	ContractName	Ascending	×	1
	Expiration Date	Ascending	×	-
			"View Name: Physic	Save this View
			Share Wi	th Other User:

## **The Contract Container**

90 🔶		W	ts To Revie	2 Contrac	Notes	Milestones	Activities	Contracts	Home
tage/Change Stage	Current Sta				9)	13 (8090	2012-20	x SLA	Citri
•	rchasing Audit	Pu	0						
for 5 days									
	Related Contracts	Email	History	Notos	lilestones	Activities	mont(s)	y Attach	Summar

From the listing of contracts in the grid from the Contracts tab on the Enterprise Ribbon, a user can click to select any contract, view its contents, view key elements, and activate access to capabilities specific to the selected contract through a "secondary" navigation ribbon called the Contracts tab.

The difference between the Enterprise navigation ribbon and the Contract ribbon is that of perspective. The Enterprise navigation ribbon and its associated capabilities allow the user to look across all contracts in the enterprise or, depending on their security and permission settings, only contracts to which they have access. This paradigm gives users, managers and administrators a broad view of contracts, contract performance, and exceptions that require attention across the enterprise and, of course, rapid access to relevant information. The Contract ribbon gives users in search of specific contracts the ability to quickly access information, evaluate potential actions, and effectively manage its near and long-term lifecycle and performance. After a contract Container will be available by clicking on the Summary tab. Summary information (or contract attributes) includes the contract title or name, description, owner, contract type, primary document name (if any), folder, created on date and time, and updated date and time. Most of this information can be modified by clicking on the field label and saving or discarding changes as necessary (provided they have access to do so by rights defined in the user's security settings).



### (1) Workflow Template Selector Icon

The Workflow Template Selector icon resides in every section of the Contract ribbon and appears with red and blue arrows when a workflow has been assigned, otherwise it is seen as gray. By hovering over the icon, a popup box appears with the name of the defined Workflow Template. In order to reassign a workflow, an Administrator must be contacted.

### (2) Assignees Indicator

Clicking on this icon will bring up the Assignees notification listing for the chosen Workflow Template.

### (3) Current Stage/Change Stage

In the upper right-hand corner of the contract Summary tab page is a drop-down box containing stages that can be assigned to a contract. Within a Workflow Template, the stages can only be advanced forward one step, but backward as many as necessary. If a selected stage requires the completion of specific activities in order to be assigned, then a selected message will notify the user of this requirement and will not change the contract stage.

#### (4) Days in Current Stage Indicator

The number of days a stage has been assigned is displayed beneath the Workflow Stage drop- down and is a reportable field as it shows up in the criteria listing.

## **Contract Container: Summary Tab**



- 1. Contract Container Name/ID
- 2. Workflow Template Selector icon
- 3. Assignees icon
- 4. Workflow Stage indicator
- 5. Days in Current Stage
- 6. Contract tabs
- 7. Show/Hide Contract Attributes
- 8. Expand All Custom Fields
- 9. Move to Next Contract in Previous Listing
- 10. Expand/Collapse all Custom Fields

- 11. Add Custom Field/Field Group
- 12. Help icon
- 13. Contract Attributes Section
- 14. Contract Name
- 15. Contract Origin (how it was loaded)
- 16. Contract ID
- 17. Related Contract
- 18. Contract Description
- 19. Contract Owner
- 20. Notify On Stage Update checkbox
- 21. Contract Review Status

- 22. Contract Type selector
- 23. Primary Document link
- 24. Folder Name indicator
- 25. Contract Creation Date/Time
- 26. Contract Updated Date/Time
- 27. Field/Field Group ribbon
- 28. Field Type indicator
- 29. Edit Field icon
- 30. Delete Field icon
- 31. Expand/Collapse Field icon

#### (5) Days in Current Stage

The number of days a stage has been assigned

### (6) Contract tabs

The tabs on the Contract ribbon

### (7) Show/Hide Contract Attributes

Shows/hides the top section of the Summary page that includes basic contract information. Checking this on or off is a global setting for all contracts and is available for each user individually.

Summary	Attachment(s)	Performance	Activities	Milestones	Notes	History	Email	Relate	ed Contracts
Show C	ontract Attribute	s 🔽 Exp	and All 🛛						
							Collap	se All	Add Fields

#### (8) Expand All Custom Fields

Opens all of the custom field ribbons to display the current data associated with the contract enabling the user to view, modify, or delete any field by clicking on the associated icons. The user can also see all history associated with any non-grouped field by clicking on its History tab.

#### (9) Contract Navigation

This set of arrows allows you to navigate through the contracts listed in the previous grid of contracts from the Enterprise ribbon, as opposed to going back to the listing and choosing the next contract from the list.

#### (10) Expand/Collapse All Custom Fields

Closes all custom field ribbons to hide or compress the data in the field.

#### (11) Add Fields

Opens a drop-down box (shown below) displaying all possible fields that can be added to the current contract. Note that only fields for which the user has permissions for a specific contract will be available for selection by that user.

Summary	Attachment(s)	Performance	Activities	Milestones	Notes	History	Emails	Related Contracts
	Sele	ect Category	VII Fields	Add Fie	Ids(	Choose field	to add	- 💽 📢
Contrac	t Name: Waste C	ollection 2012						

In addition to the fields described on the previous pages, specific information related to the contract (Fields) will be listed underneath the summary information and can be viewed in either collapsed (1) or expanded (2) form.

The specific fields can be modified or deleted directly on the contract Summary page and new fields can be easily added. Fields can be added singularly, or as Field Groups. The illustration here shows one of each, the single field is in collapsed form, and the field group is in expanded form.

To edit a field on the Summary page, click on the Edit icon (?), change or add the necessary information, and click Save.

💭 General Info (Field Group)		
Contract Category:	New	Q
Fiscal Year:	FY 14 💌	0
Alternate Contact:		0
Justification:	Training Example of all appropriate info entered for a contract	
		~
Quote Expiration Date:		Q
Total 1st Year Costs:	11000	0
Recurring Annual Costs:		0
Change Order or Amendment Amount:		Q
Total Contract Value:		Q
Auto Renewal:		0
Renewal Options:		Ø
Effective Start Date:	08/05/2013	0
Effective End Date:	01/01/2015	$\overline{\mathbb{Q}}$
Index:	200400	
Fund:	110000	0
ORG:	200400	0
PO Number:		
Vendor Name:	Training Coordinator	
Vendor N#:	N00007620	Q
Vendor Application Received:	- 	
Vendor W9 Received:		Q
Save Cancel	Field Group)	
mourance requirements (i		
UNF Insurance Required:		Ø
UNF Insurance Expiration:	02/14/2014	<b>S</b>
vendor insurance kequired:		
vendor Insurance Expiration:	03/14/2014	
Save Cancel		

## **Contract Container: Attachments**

If you have any attachments to your contract, you will now see the Primary Document listed prominently (provided you have defined a Primary Document) with all of its pertinent data and a grid containing all of the attachments grouped by version as the default. You will have the ability to display your attachments grouped by any of the criteria most notably, but not limited to, Attachment Category, Version Number, Attachment State, and when items were added or updated.

Summary Attachmer	nt(s) /	Activities	Milestones	Notes History Email	Related Contra	icts						
Document(s) Views	) ()	Prima	ry Document								6 Add Documer	t Report Backup 🤪
Add New View		Contract Version: Related To Current F Documen Added On	ct 1.00 / Document o: ile: <u>SUnion 1 sm</u> t Description: Con p: 12/16/2013 4:49:3 Dn: 12/16/2013 4:49	Category: Contracts / Documen ipo tract (after redined) 18 PM / Added By: (Contracts Instruc- 28 PM / Indeed By: (Contracts Instruc-	t State: Draft 6							/*
	Edit	Delete	AttachmentType	DocumentName 🔞	AttachmentState	CurrentFile	Description	FileType	AddedOn	AddedBy	AttachmentNumber	RelatedTo
	1	×	Primary	Contract	Draft	SUnion 1 sm.jpg	Contract (after redlined)	jpg	12/16/2013 04:49:38.45 PM	iContracts Instructor	2	389
	() Atl	tachmentG	roup: Version: Ini	itial Quote (129596), [Total: 1]								
	1	×	Supporting	Initial Quote	Draft	for Training - Simple Sa	First e-mail quote.	doc	12/16/2013 04:48:26.84 PM	iContracts Instructor	2	388
		4 Page	1 of 1 ▷ ▷	1	m							Displaying records 1 - 2 of 2

- 1. Attachment(s) Views tab
- 2. Document(s) Views
- 3. View All Documents link
- 4. Add New View link
- 5. Add Document button

- 6. Primary Document information
- 7. Document grid
- 8. Document Field grid
- 9. Attachment Group heading

Any number of attachments including Word documents, Excel spreadsheets, PDFs and others can be linked to a specific contract and are accessible through the Contract Attachment tab. Any of these attachments may be designated as the Primary Document while all others including drafts, exhibits, referenced documents and other working documents can be stored as Supporting Documents.

#### To Add a New Attachment

- 1. Click on the Add Document button
- 2. The Upload Attachment window appears
- 3. Enter the title of the attachment to be added in the Title field
- 4. Select the category for the document from the Category drop down list
- 5. Select the state of the document from the State drop down list
- 6. Attach any file for the above attachment from File field
- 7. Enter more information about this attachment in the Description field
- 8. If the attachment is the primary document check the Make this the Primary Document box in order to make the attached file a primary document
- 9. Click the Save button, a confirmation appears that the attachment was successfully created

#### **Editing an Attachment's Information**

mmary Attachment	(s) Performance Activ	ities Milestones No	otes History	Emails	Related Contracts
ontract Views	Upload Attachment				
ew All Contracte	Document Title:	Final Contract			
All Patente (20) X	Attachment Category:	Contract Processing			
Checklist (158)	State:	Final		-	
Approved (5) X	File;	C 'Users'sales4'Documents'de	emo_files'contract_fin	al-v3 Erow	se_'
ncrease (4)		Final Version of Contract			1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 - 1992 -
Awaiting 💿 🗶 BudgetFinancial	Description:				
Approval (6)		Make this the Primary (	Document		
Expired (7)	2		- Contraction		
Contracts (5)		Save	Cancel		

You can change an attachment's title, category, version, state or description or make a supporting document a primary document. To edit an attachment's information, click on the Edit icon ( $\checkmark$ ).

Final Contract	Contract Processing	1.10	the	×	Prie
Data Destruction Final Contract	1.00	Y	×	Su	
AttachmentGroup: Version: F	inancial Rvw complete (35626), [Total: 1]				
Council Downworksto		1.00			0.

#### Arranging the Attachments Grid

As with every grid in iContracts, you have the ability to choose which columns to display, but differently than the Enterprise grids, the listing of options appears in a fly-out menu that you can click in a checkbox to choose its visibility.



### You can group any column by selecting Group By This Field from its drop-down menu.



### (Resulting Example)

AttachmentCategory ~	Edi t	Del ete	AttachmentT ype	File Typ elc on	DocumentName	CurrentFile
I AttachmentGroup: Ve	ersion: l	Med	Surg Contrac	t Am	endment 2011 (40084), [Total: 1]	
Amendments	0	×	Supporting	W	MedSurg Contract Amendment 2011	amendme
G AttachmentGroup: Ve	ersion: I	Med	Surg Contrac	t Am	endment 2012 (40085), [Total: 1]	
Amendments	0	×	Supporting	W	MedSurg Contract Amendment 2012	amendme
B AttachmentGroup: Vo	ersion: I	Med	Surg Final ve	rsion	(40093), [Total: 5]	
Contract Processing	0	×	Primary		MedSurg Final version	contract f
Contract Processing	0	×	Supporting	M.	MedSurg First Draft	contract-d
Contract Processing	0	×	Supporting		MedSurg-Redlines	contract r

In order to show an uncategorized listing of all documents, uncheck the Show in Groups box from the dropdown menu.



#### **Version Control**

Any document can be a version of another. The system will ask if a newly added document is a version of another and the user will be able to select from a list of existing attachments.

			Yes	No		
Arter Benedot	4    Pe	aformatice	Acrivitie	es Milestra	nes Notes	filishny    Fin
	S	elect Ass	ociated A	ttachment		
Inte	versio	nAdded Hy	Added On	Attachment State	Attachment Category	
Data Destruction Final Contract 2010-2011	1.00	Carl Leinbach	12/5/2011 11:22: <mark>1</mark> 4 AM	Signed		Select
Data Destruction Draft 2010-2011	1.00	Carl Leinbach	12/5/2011 11:24:26 AM	Draft		Select
Financial Rvw complete	1.00	Garl Leinbach	4/2/2012 12.16.57 PM	Final		Select

On the following screen, the system will suggest a version number, which can be overridden.

Assig	n Version	For Attachment
Attachme	nt Version (	0.00-999.99) : 1.10
	OK	Carcer
	UN.	Carcel

Users can edit existing attachments so that they are a version of another document and can specify the version number, if desired.



If the system recognizes the same file name as another already loaded, it will automatically select that document and then suggest a version number.

Is the File "contract_redine	d.doc" is the	ersion of Documer	n "MedSurg-Redlines"
	Yes	No	

#### **Attachment Views**

Like all the other areas in iContracts, the ability to create a view exists within the attachments area for each Contract Container. This makes it easy to display only the items for which you are searching. Because the grid will extend to show all of your attachments on one screen, which could possibly get quite lengthy, the total number of attachments will be shown in parenthesis underneath the View All Attachments link inside the Attachment Views area.

When you create or modify an Attachment view, the criteria by which you can search is listed here. All the other options are identical to all other views in iContracts.



## **Contract Container: Activities**

Activities Views	Activitie	5					Add Activ	ity Report
View All Activities	Complete	Activityliame	Frdiare ime	AssensedUthersitisme	ACTIVITY	AssonedioName	CompletedOn	Contract
Add New View		Yearly Contract Review	12/01/2012 05:00:00 PM	2 August and and an and a	85490	Contract Hanager		Rahl Glen ND
		ohock emondmonte	00/11/2013 08:30:00 AM		102735	GadLanback	02/25/2013 01:54:53 PM	Rehl Glen MD
		should an	00/15/2010 08:30.00 AM		102740	Callendeach	02/27/2013 12.56.27 PM	Rehl Clen MD
		chock-amondmonte	10/19/2013 08:20:00 AM		102736	CariLonbach	02/25/2013 01:50:58 FM	Rohl Clen MD
		check amenciments	100220813 08:30-00 AM		102741	Carllabhach	03/16/2013 03:57:22 PM	Rahl Glen MD
		check amendments	02/25/2013-08-30:00 AM		102737	Carl Leinbach	02/25/2013 01:50:18 PM	Rahl Glen MD
		check emondmonte	03/01/2013 08:30:00 AM		102742	Carl Loinbach		Rehl Glon MD
		check.smandmants	03/04/2013 DB/30:00 AM		102738	CarlLeinbach	02/25/2013 01:51:02 PM	Rahi Glen HD
		check amondments	03/08/2013 06:30:00 AM		102743	Carl Leinbach		Reht Glon MD
		olesh annalounda	45/11/2010 08:30:00 AM		102735	Callaidach	02/25/2013 01 51:27 PM	Reld Glen MD
	< .	III		1				
	. 14 4 11	Page 1 of 3 🕨 🔰 🙀	16				Displa	ying records 1 - 10

The contract Activities tab provides users with a view of past, present or future activities associated with the Contract Container. As with the Contract tab, you can add or modify an unlimited number of saved searches (Activities Views) that contain criteria such as alterable sorting, page layouts, and the ability to filter on any combination of activity data. In addition to the ability to create complex searches, with one click users may select all activities, all assigned activities, or all activities created by you. Any filtered view of contract activities may also be exported by simply clicking on the Report button. New activities may also be added directly from this page.

#### Adding an Activity

You can add an activity for yourself or another team member. You can either add an activity from the Activities window or from a contract Activities window. If you add an activity from the Enterprise Ribbon Activities window, it is not associated with an agreement; however you can associate from the drop down list provided. <u>When assigning an activity, it is recommended to add from the Contract Container, choosing the selected contract, and then from the Activities tab.</u>

To view the activities related to a particular agreement click the Activities tab. Activities are listed under the agreement activities area near the bottom of the window.

ctivities Views	Activities	Report
ew All Activities Add New View	Activity Name: Frenew License         •           Start date:         2/102014         8:00 AM         •           End date:         2/142014         4:00 PM         •           Duration:         [14:01:17]         •         •	
	Assigned to: Contracts Student 💌	
	Hold Ctrl key to select multiple items       George Androuin Gra Miches       Hans Prepte       Assigned Othersys       James George Jeannine Previ       James George Jeannine Previ       Journe Description	
	Required to Move an	
	Contract Status:	
	Recurring? (options set on the next page, after Save) Reminder: (5 minutes v)	
	Email Notification:	
	Repeat Notifications:	
	Completed:	
	ActivityName Complete ActivityD AssignedOthersName AssignedToName CompletedOn Contract CreatedByName CreatedByName	dOn Description EndDateTi

The activity as it appears when it is assigned to you and as assigned to another user. Note that if it is NOT assigned to you, you cannot mark it as completed.

### To Add an Activity from the Contract Activities Window

- 1. Click the Activities tab near the top of the page
- 2. Click the Add Activities button on the right side of the page
- 3. Define the new activity

#### To Define the New Activity

Whether you've created a new activity from the Activities window or from an Agreement Activities window, the New Activities window appears.

- 4. Enter the activity to be performed in the Activities Name field
- 5. Enter a completion date for this activity in the Due Date field
- 6. Select the person to whom this activity should be assigned from the Assigned To field. If you assign this activity to another person, they will receive an e-mail notification about the activity from iContracts
- 7. Select the other person to whom this activity should be assigned from the Assigned Other field. If you assign this activity to another person, they will receive an e-mail notification about the activity from iContracts
- 8. Enter more information about this activity in the Description field
- 9. Click the save button. A confirmation appears that the activity was successfully created. The activity created in the agreement summary will include a link to the agreement in the Related To field

#### To Complete an Activity Task

- 1. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 2. Click the Completed check box for each activity you want to mark as completed in the Activities table
- 3. If the activity is assigned to another user, the Mark as Completed option will not appear and you will not be able to complete it. Only the person to whom an activity is assigned can complete it

Once you complete an activity, the activity appears with its row crossed out in the grid.

#### To Reactivate an Activity

- 1. If you have marked an activity as completed, and then decide that it is not complete, you can reactivate the activity in iContracts
- 2. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 3. Click the activity you want to reactivate in the Activities table
- 4. Click the Reactivate Activity button at the top right. The activity now appears in the Activities list as an active task

#### To Delete an Activity

- 1. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 2. Click the activity you want to delete in the Activities table
- 3. Click the Delete link at the top of the Activities detail window
- 4. A confirmation dialog appears; click Yes to delete the activity

### To Edit an Activity

You can change an activity's subject, due date, or description; or you can assign an activity to a different person. If you want to complete an activity, see Completing Tasks.

- 1. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 2. Click the activity you want to edit in the Activities table
- 3. Click the Edit icon (?) at the top of the Activities detail window; the Edit Activity window appears
- 4. You can change the subject, assignment, due date or description for the activity; then click the Save button

#### To Export the List of Activities

You can export your list of activities from iContracts. Activity information is exported in a comma-delimited (.csv) format file.

- 1. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 2. Click the export button
- 3. In the dialog box that appears, decide whether or not to open or save the .csv spreadsheet file

#### To View the Activities in the Activities Window

You can view tasks that you created, or that were assigned to you, from the Activities window. The Activities window shows all activities that you have created or are assigned to you.

- 1. Click Activities in the menu bar
- 2. The Activities window appears
- 3. You can see the activities assigned to the logged in user and have a check box (to mark complete) in the left most column

Any activity that the user created has a dot in that column. Only the user to whom the activity is assigned can mark it completed. To view the activities related to a particular Contract Container, simply click the Activities tab in the Contract ribbon. Activities are listed under the Agreement Activities area near the bottom of the window.

## **Contract Container: Milestones**

The Milestones tab provides users with a view of past, present, and future milestones associated with all contracts housed in the system. As with the Contract tab, you can add or modify an unlimited number of saved searches (Milestone Views) that contain criteria such as alterable sorting, page layouts, and the ability to filter on any combination of activities data. Any filtered view of contract milestones may also be exported by simply clicking on the Report button. New milestones may be added directly from this page by clicking on Add Milestone. When assigning a milestone, it is recommended to add from the Contract Container, choosing the selected contract, and then from its Milestone tab.

The milestones associated with a Contract Container are notifications associated with a particular contract based on a date and can be set to notify multiple users on a specified number of days before an event, such as a contract's expiration. Milestones can be created from a few different places within the Contract Container - from the Milestones tab itself or a date field located in the Summary tab.

Summary	Attachme	ent(s) Activities	Milestones	Notes	History	Email	Related	Contrac	ts											
Milestone Views	s	New Milesto	one																	
CAdd New	v View				Milestone	Name:	Walk Thru								*					
					Completio	on Date:	6/3/2014								*					
							Walk Thru o	f process							*					
					Desc	ription:									-					
				Re	sponsible F	Person:	Angela Lee					▼ *			Notify Before:	4		Days *		
				No	otification N	Nethod:	Calendar	Text M	ed											
							Hold Ctrl k	ey to sele	ct multip	ple items										
					Also	) Notify:	Gina Motes Hans Prieph iContracts / iContracts S James Geo Jeannine Pr Jeff Durfee	e administra istructor itudent ge ew	or			(III) T			Notify Before:	3		Days		
				No	otification N	lethod:	Email Calendar	RSS F	ed ssage											
				Repeat E	mail Notific	ations:														
				Noti	ify On Com	pletion:														
					Com	pleted:														
							Save	•	Cancel											
		Milestones															Add Miles	tone	Rep	ort 💡
		Complete 🔺	Contractid Milesto	oneld	ContractN	lame	De	cription		MilestoneNar	ne		MilestoneCom	npletionDate	CreatedOn		UpDatedOn	Cre	eatedBy	F
		•																		+
		4 4 Page	1 of 1 🕨 🕽	N   &															No reco	rds to display
				-																

## Creating a Milestone from the Milestones Tab in a Contract

You can add a milestone for yourself, or another team member, using iContracts. You can either add a milestone from the Enterprise Ribbon Milestone window or from an Agreement Milestone window. It is recommended to add from the Contract Container, choosing the selected contract, and then from its Milestone tab.

- 1. Click the Milestone tab near the top of the page
- 2. Click the Add Milestone button on the right side of the page
- 3. Define the new milestone

### To Define the New Milestone

- 1. Enter a title and description for the milestone in the Milestone Name and Description fields
- 2. Enter completion date in the Completion Date field
- 3. Select the contract from Contract drop down list
- 4. Select the responsible person from Responsible Person drop down list
- 5. Enter the notify days in the Notify Before fields
- 6. Check the notification method you want to notify with
- 7. Select the other notify person from Also Notify drop down list
- 8. Enter the notify days in the Notify Before fields
- 9. Check the notification method you want to notify with
- 10. Completed check box is to be checked when the milestone has been achieved
- 11. Click the Save button

Note: Checking the Repeat Email Notification box will send a <u>daily</u> reminder to the responsible person.

#### **To View Milestone Details**

- 1. Click Milestones tab in the menu bar
- 2. Milestones are listed in the table
- 3. Click the milestone you want to view in the Milestone table
- 4. Milestone detail window will open

#### To Edit a Milestone

You can edit a milestone to change its name, completion date, description, responsible person, notification days, etc.

- 1. Click Milestones tab in the menu bar
- 2. Milestones are listed in the table
- 3. Click the milestone you want to edit in the Milestone table
- 4. Milestone detail window will open
- 5. Click the Edit button at the top of the milestone detail window; the Edit milestone window appears
- 6. You can change name, completion date, description, responsible person, notification days, notification method etc.; then click the Update button

#### To Delete a User Created Milestone

You may delete any user created milestone that has been defined for an agreement.

- 1. Click Milestones tab in the menu bar
- 2. Milestones are listed in the table
- 3. Click the milestone you want to delete in the Milestones table
- 4. Milestones detail window will open
- 5. Click the red Delete icon at the top right of the Milestone detail window
- 6. A confirmation dialogue appears; click Yes to delete the milestone

### Creating a Milestone from a Singular Date Field

Milestones can also be created from the Summary tab from a date field not appearing in a Field Group. A popup dialog box will appear to fill out directly from that screen without having to first go to the Milestones tab. The milestone will then appear in the list with all the other milestones from this Contract Container, as well as in the Milestones tab located on the Enterprise ribbon.

Expiration Date (Date)			*	G	
12/31/2012 * Activit	Y 🖾 Auto Update A	ctivity 🔸 Milestone 🖾 Auto Update Mileston	•		
Contract ID: 79118			10.0		
Description: Dr. Bobb contract 2012 Owner: Carl Leinbach	New Milestone		×		
Review Status: No Reviewers Set for th Contract Type: Physicians	Milestono Nomo:	Dobb, Rowlf Expiration Data *			
Primary Document: Bobb_physician_emplo, Folder Name: iContracts General Hos Created On: 11/2/2011 2:11:00 4M	Completion Date:	AutoCreated Milestone For Bobb. Bowlf Expiration Date			
Expiration Date (Date)	Responsible Person:	Carl Leinbach 💌 * Before: 60 0	Days *	1	
12/31/2012 + Activity Ene	Notification Method:	Calendar RSS Feed			
Save Cancel		Hold Otri key to select multiple items			
Physicians Contract Items (Field Group)	Also Notify:	Bernie fitz Histoce Uter Legal Uter +	)аув		
Stark Checklist (Held Greup)	Notification Method:	Calendar R33 Feed		2	
	Notify On Completion: Completed	8		_	
		Save Cancel			

## **Contract Container: Notes**

The Notes tab within the Contract Container includes all notes associated with only that contract. Examples of views in the Notes section are "Notes to Me" or "Notes from Me". You can add a note for yourself or another team member. To create a note, click on the Add Note button, fill out the form and attach a document, if necessary. If a document is attached to a note, it will then also appear within the Attachments tab with a description.

This is a great area to keep track of collaboration about the contract in an organized and chronological manner.



#### To Add a Note from the Notes Tab

You can add a note for yourself, or another team member, using iContracts. You can either add a note from the Note window or from an agreement note window. If you add a note from the Note window, it is not associated with an agreement; however you can associate from the drop down list provided.

- 1. Click the Notes tab on the Contract ribbon
- 2. Click the Add Note link

A-May	machine						Current St	age/Change Stage
						0	Purchasing Audit	for 5 days
Summary	Attachmont(s)	Activitios	Milectonoc	Notes	Emails	Related Cont	racts	6
Notes Vie View All Not	ws w View	Add o note X-Ray Machin	e does not have	any note	a <u>Add a nol</u>	ie now 22		

- 3. Fill out the information fields required fields are marked with an asterisk
- 4. Attach any file in support of the above note from Attachment field
- 5. Click the Save button and a confirmation appears that the note was successfully created.; the note will include a link to the contract of which it relates when saved

dd Notes				
Title:	Review contract renewal to	erms		
Hote:	Can we take a look at the as it relates to our new po days worked per month?	terms in this contract licies on number of	*	
Attachment:	C:WsersVPremiereImaging	Ocuments\premiereir	nagir Hrowae)	
	Save	Cancel		

		Note was ad	ded successfully		
Notes Views	Notes			[	Add Note Report
View All Notes	Netold	Attachment	GreatedOn	CreatedBy	Note
OAdd New View	482	DOECH DARRAN TICSLOAT	11/14/2011	Call enhan	Can we take a look at the terr

#### To Delete a Note

- 1. Click the Notes tab on the Contract Ribbon
- 2. Click the note title you want to delete in the Note table
- 3. Click the Delete icon (X) at the top of the Note detail window
- 4. A confirmation dialogue appears. Click Yes to delete the note

#### To Edit a Note

You can change a note's title, content, or you can associate a note to a different contract.

- 1. Click the Notes tab on the Contract ribbon
- 2. Click the note title you want to edit in the note table
- 3. You can change the title, content or you can associate a note to a different contract; then click the Save button

## **Contract Container: History**

The contract History tab provides users with a filtered view of changes associated with a Contract Container from the time the contract enters the system. Users can configure which columns will display, in what order they will display (from left-to-right) as well as which column the display is sorted on. History serves as an audit trail so that a user with access can see when contract fields and attachments were added, edited, and/or deleted by them. The history of a Contract Container cannot be modified . . . even by a UNF iContracts System Administrator.

ne Contracto Ac	frition Hilostopos	Notes Company Admin			100
obb Rowiph	Physician - 2	2012		Correct Stage/O	lange 1
9975)			🔒 👌 🐏 Execu	tion	
					fæ 8
mary Attochment	(s) Activities 6	Restones Roses History Email Related Con	Parts	Report	4
MOTYDRE =	Mastedly	Connerts	FestContent	Field	
01010121121170220	Advin Quer	Created Contract, Bubb, Rewish Physician Contract 2012	Graeled Gentraul, Bokio, Rowigh Physician Contrast 2012		
	Antoin Unar	Created (Attachment) Dr. Bate Contract 2015, doi:10.11	Created (2)/technical: On Bable Convert 2012, and of		
U65/0912-017-02 J.N			and the second		
1050912-017-02-1N 1050912-918-05-4N	Admn Uker	Dealed (Attachment) Dr. Boto contract v2	Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold contract v2		
1052912-0-17-02-230 1052912-9-18-05-240 1052912-8-26-25-240	Admit User Admit User	Dreated (Attachment) for Bobb contract v2 Dreated (Attachment) Final signed and kneckted and	Created sideschments Dr. Bolitic contract v2 Created Uktachments Pinal egred and exercised doc		
1050312 0 17 02 JN 1050312 9 10 05 JN 1050312 6 36 25 JN 1050312 9 40 04 JN	Admit User Admit User Admit User	Deater (Atachevit), Er Bebb contact v2 Deater (Atachiner), Prix signed and rolecater (ac Dreated (Atachevit), Prinside/Review document	Challed (Attachment) Dr. Bold contract v2 Challed (Attachment) Pinalsigned and executed doc Challed (Attachment) Pinancial Revers excument		
LOLONO 017 02 JN LOLONO 017 02 JN LOLONO 02 010 05 JN LOSONO 20 40 04 JN LOSONO 040 04 JN	Admit Uppr Admit Uppr Admit Uppr Admit Uppr	Created (Atachevit) Dr. Boto contact (2 Created (Atachevit) Prix expediant speciale Dro Created (Atachevity) Principal Breview discoveri Disktiel (Atachevity) Principal Brukey Bosoveri	Challed (Attachment) Dr. Bold contract /2 Challed V-lactment) Pinal spred and executed doo Challed 4-dartment) Pinancia Review document Deleted (Attachment) Pinancia Review document		
105012 0 17 02 JU 105012 9 10 05 JU 105012 9 10 05 JU 105012 9 40 04 JU 1050312 0 40 04 JU 1050312 0 41 47 JU 1050312 0 41 47 JU	Admit Uker Admit Uker Admit Uker Admit Uker Admit Uker	Diverset (Attachment) Dr. Botto contract (2 Diverset (Attachment) Prix express and reaculate Dro Diverset (Attachment) Principal Review discument Disktol (Attachment) Principal Review discument Diverset (Attachment) Principal Review discument	Cristled (Attachment) Dr. Bold contract v2 Cristled V-lastment) Pitalisipred and executed doo Cristled 4-dartment) Pitalisipred and executed doo Cristled 4-dartment) Pitalogi Bevillov doosment Cristled (Attachment) Pitalogia Bevillov doosment Cristled (Attachment) Pitalogia Bevillov doosment		
105012 017 02 JU 105012 918 05 AU 105012 936 05 AU 105012 940 04 AU 105012 040 4AU 105012 041 47 AU 105012 942 19 AU 105012 942 19 AU	Admin Uker Admin Uker Admin Uker Admin Uker Admin Uker Admin Uker	Diversed (Altachment) Dr. Boto contract (2 Diversed (Altachment) Print signed and executed bio Diversed (Altachment) Printice/Review discement Diversed (Altachment) Printice/Review document Diversed (Altachment) Printice/Review document Diversed (Altachment) Printice/Review document	Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold contract v2 Created (Attachment) Pinal spred and executed (do) Created (Attachment) Pinancia Review document Detel (Attachment) Financia Review document Created (Attachment) Financia Review document Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold, PR shoto		
105012 0 17 02 JU 105012 9 18 05 AU 105012 9 18 05 AU 105012 9 40 04 AU 105012 0 40 04 AU 105012 0 41 47 AU 105012 9 42 19 AU 105012 9 47 11 AU	Admit Uper Admit Uper Admit Uper Admit Uper Admit Uper Admit Uper	Divarial (Atachinert) Dr. Boto contract (2 Divarial (Atachinert) Prix spred and executed and Divarial (Atachinert) Prixeloil Review divariant Divarial (Atachinert) Prixeloil Review divariant Divarial (Atachinert) Prixeloil Review divariant Divarial (Atachinert) Dr. Boto PR phylo Divarial (Atachinert) Dr. Boto en 0.7.	Created (Attachment) Dr. Bobb contract v2 Created (Attachment) Privategreed and executed dbo Created (Attachment) Privatola Review exoured Distered (Attachment) Privatola Review exourient Created (Attachment) Privatola Review ecourient Created (Attachment) Privatola Review ecourient Created (Attachment) Privatola Review ecourient Created (Attachment) Privatola Privato		
101.010 0 0 17 00 11 103.0110 9 18 0 0 11 105.0112 8 0 6 15 11 105.0112 8 0 6 15 11 105.0112 0 40 04 AN 105.0112 0 41 47 AN 105.0112 0 47 14 AN 105.0112 0 47 15 AN 105.0112 11 44 05 AN	Admit User Admit User Admit User Admit User Admit User Admit User Admit User Physican Leaon	Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Betto contract (2) Diversed (Attachment) Prival signed and executed and Diversed (Attachment) Prival signed and executed and Diversed (Attachment) Prival signed and executed Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR sinste Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR sinste Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR on Signed Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR on Signed Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR on Signed Diversed (Attachment) Dr. Botto PR on Signed and executed acc	Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold: contract //2 Created (Attachment) Prival spined and executed doo Created (Attachment) Privancial Review document Deleted (Attachment) Privancial Review document Created (Attachment) Privancial Review document Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold: PR sholo Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold: PR sholo Created (Attachment) Dr. Bold: PR sholo Dreated (Attachment) Prival spined and checkured dire		

## **Contract Container: Emails**

The contract Emails tab allows users to easily send emails and attached documents associated with a contract to anyone directly from iContracts. Email supports To:, Cc:, Bcc:, and a Subject line and also allows the user to format a message to the recipients. All, none, or select attachment documents can be sent along with the email message. All outgoing email messages are logged against the History tab.

							-	0.4		
									Urat	
Summary	Attachmen	t(s) Pe	formance	Activities	Nilestones	Notes	History	Emails	1	
										•
	To :									
	CC:									
	BCC :								_	
	Subject :									
	nessage .								*	
	Unchment	All Marrie							-	
	successes .									
			Final Cor Bobb_physi	itract cian_ismploymer	Logroement-FIN/	Lpdf		350.00 Dvt	<b>H</b>	
			Dr. Bobb Bebb_physi	contract 701 contract 701	7 it_agreementV1.d	oe		84.90 Byt	ues.	
		Ø.	Dr. Bobb Beet_pnyei	contract 201 can_employment	2 II_sgreementV2.c	oc		85 00 By	**	
			web phot droob (pg	o_bobb				21.00 Bys	**	
		2 📆	Review c policy_0496	ontract rene 4a_final.pdf	wal terms			1268.03 Byt	143	
						Total :	Selected bytes	1809.08 By	-	
				s	end Can	cel				

## **Contract Container: Related Contracts**

A user can also look at what is pointing to a particular contract in the system. While viewing a Contract Container, the user can go to the Related Contracts tab to view a list of all of the contracts which are pointing to the currently displayed contract. In the example below, we can see both are pointing to it as their Related Contract. There is no limit to how many contracts can point to another contract.

If we were to click on the contract listed below, we would see (on its Summary tab) any and all contracts listed as its Related Contract.

When looking at a contract's Summary tab, users can specify a contract that the current contract is related to (Related Contract, circled, below). Each contract in the system can specify another contract that it is related to.

Bobb Rowlph Physician	- 2012				0	Cannot Po	aps/Char
(79975)					Execu	ution	
Summary Attachmentin Activities	Mässtones Notes H	Edsy Enail 2	alated Contra				_
Related Contract(s) for : Bobb Row	ph Physician - 2012						Ro
Contractions -	ContractTypellame Disc	gallene Ovrar	Description	Developin	Epdelwithr	Amberscetty	
85912 Book Provide Nethodist	Physicalia Con	madibishing Cariban	Berodstra	1425/2012 54/21 4TPV	E22120121144/3648		
Maria Band Promoter, Language	Physicana App	proved and Cartlan.	Lateriev Fa	5405-0017-04-00-6400	1914 2012 65 45 3648		
120140 ST20 Terraine Died, Lorry Death	Lane - where Au	provol-aw. Dires fur.	Prosidera o.	10172010 12 St 10FM	100720-0 0425.50Pv		
*1	100000000000000000000000000000000000000						
11 1 Page 1 of 1 - 21 2						Destays	ry wu
义 Contro	acts			Sa: Ind	arch By: Contract Na clude Archived 🕅		
None Contracts Act	NIEs Miestores	Notes Comp	any Admin	Sa Ind	eron By: Contract Har clude Archived 🕅		
Bobe Contracts Act	DICTS Miestones	Notes Comp	any Admin	Sa Inte	sroh By: Contract Na clude Aschived 🕅	Ciel Sea • E tiage/Charge Slage	
Bobe Contracts Act Bobb Physici	DICTS Miestones an - Methodis	Notes Comp at (95913)	any Admin	Sa Internet	sroh By: Contract Na clude Aschived R Carrent S	Ciel Sea (* ) (* ) (* ) (* ) (* ) (* ) (* ) (* )	
Rome Contracts Act Bobb Physici	DICTS IVIDes Milestones an - Methodis	Notes Comp at (95913)	any Admin	Sa Ind	eron By: Contract Has clude Archived T Correct 1 r Review	Chei Sea me - tago/change tinge fur 29 day	
Rome Contracts Act Bobb Physicia Summary Attachment Show Contract Attr	Ivities Milestones an - Methodis	Notes Comp at (95913) Alliestones Not pand All Z	any Arimia	Sa Ind Owner y Email Re	Iron By: Contract Na clude Archived Contract 1 Correct 1 r Review	Con Sex me • tage/change tage for 29 day	
Bobb Physici Summary Attachment Show Contract Attr	IVIERS Milestones an - Methodis Inte: Activition M Ibutes I Exc	Notes Comp at (95913) Alliestones Not pand All I	any Admia	Sa Ind Owner	Inter Py: Contract Na Contract Na Contract Contracts Collapse All	cree Sea sme Te Stage/Change Stage For 39 Jan Add Fields @	
Bobb Physicia Summary Attachmen Show Contract Attr	IVIERS Milestones an - Methodis Intel Accivition M Ibutos I Exc Sobo Physician - Prethod	Notes Comp at (95913) dilectones Not pand All Z	any Admia	Sa Ind	Inter Py: Contract Na Contract Na Contracts	Stage/Change Stage for 39 day	
Bobb Physicia Summary Attachment Show Contract Attr Contract Name: Contract Origin.	IVIERS Milestones an - Methodis Inte: Activition M Ibutes D Exc Solo Physician - Prethod	Notes Comp at (95913) Alliestones Not pand All I	any Admia	Sa Ind Owner	Inter Py: Contract Na Contract Na Contract Of r Review	for 39 days	

# **Appendix A: List of Standard Default Contract Fields**

The list of fields shown on the right is the system provided contract attributes. These are available for query purposes and always appear at the top of the list of available fields for reporting.

### Archive

Indicates if a contract is hidden from the default view, but not deleted from the system

### **Contract ID**

The unique number assigned by iContracts that is associated with a Contract Container; this unique number is listed in parenthesis next to the Contract Name when inside the Contract Container, as well as in the contract attributes on the Summary tab

#### ContractName

The name given for a Contract Container

#### ContractOrigin

How the contract was entered into the system; the choices are Bulk Loader, User and Template

#### ContractTypeName

The type of contract as provided by the user

#### CreatedOn

The date the contract was entered into the system

#### DaysInCurrStage

The number of days since the contract entered its current Workflow

Stage; this number is displayed inside the Contract Container under the current Workflow Stage in the Workflow Stage indicator drop-down

#### Description

Additional information detailing the nature of a Contract Container in the system

#### EXTContractRefID

A reference to a record located in another external system used for linking the two systems together (this functionality is not standard)

#### FolderName

The name of the folder in which the contract resides for security and permissions

#### NotifyOnReviewCompletion

The user specified for notification when a review has been completed by all users specified for the review

Cor	Contract Columns					
V	*Contract Attributes					
[	Archive					
[	ContractID					
[	ContractName					
[	ContractOrigin					
[	ContractTypeName					
	CreatedOn					
l	DaysInCurrStage					
	Description					
	ExtContractRefID					
	FolderName					
[	NotifyOnReviewCompletion					
[	NotifyOnReviewStatusChange					
[	Owner					
[	PrimaryDocument					
	RelatedToContract					
[	RelatedToContractID					
	Reviewers					
1	ReviewsSet					
1	StageName					
	StageNotify					
1	StageNotifyNames					
	UpdatedOn					
	Workflow					

#### NotifyOnReviewStatusChange

The user specified for notification after all the reviews have been completed for a contract

#### Owner

The user responsible for the contract in the system

#### **PrimaryDocument** The attachment designated to be the main document, or perhaps the latest version of a document

RelatedToContract Lists the contract specified that the current contract relates to

RelatedToContractID Lists the contract ID specified that the current contract relates to

#### Reviewers

Lists the users specified in the Review module to review a contract

#### ReviewsSet

Denotes if a contract has been assigned for a review

#### StageName

Lists the name of the current Workflow Stage for the contract

#### StageNotify

Denotes if a user has been specified to receive notifications for a change in the workflow status of a contract

#### **StageNotifyNames**

The users specified to be notified when the workflow status of a contract has changed

#### UpdatedOn

The time and date stamp for a change in the contract data

#### Workflow

The name of the assigned workflow template for a contract

## **Appendix B: UNF Naming Convention**

#### **Division Prefixes**

AA	Academic Affairs
AF	Administration and Finance
ATH	Athletics
DAA	Development and Alumni Affairs
GC	General Counsel
HR	Human Resources
PR	Public Relations
PRES	President's Office
SA	Student Affairs

#### **Contract Name**

(Division) - (Document Title) - (Vendor Name) - (Document Category)\*

Example: AF - Systems Maintenance Services - SMS Inc. - Primary Document

Examples of Document Category: Primary Document Change Order Amendment

\*Document Category not required as part of contract name

#### Milestones

(Milestone Name) - (Contract Name)

Example: Contract Expiration - AF Systems Maintenance Services - SMS Inc. - Primary Document

Examples of Milestone Name:

Certificate of Insurance Contract Expiration Contract Renewal

#### Activities

(Activity Name) - (Contract Name) - (Vendor Name)

Example: ITS Review - AF Systems Maintenance Services - SMS Inc.

#### **Workflow Stage Names**

Owner - Dean, Director, Department Head UNF Signature - Signature of UNF delegated authority Execution - Vendor/Independent Contractor Signature Archived - Contract is no longer in effect

#### Workflow Standards:

Divisional VP review required after Owner review The Reviewers or Activities function to be used for anyone other than approvers in the workflow